NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

SHORTER NOTICE OF 9™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 9t Annual General Meeting of the shareholgjers of
the Company will be held on Monday, 30t September, 2024 at 10.00 A.M at the registered
office of the company situated at No 115 F NO. 11 Appusamy Layout, Royal Rqof
Apartments, Redfields, Race Course, Coimbatore - 641018 to transact the following

business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

3.

ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS:

To consider, adopt and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution.”

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial
year ended 315t March 2024, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the
report of the Auditors thereon, be and are hereby, considered and adopted”.

TO APPOINT STATUTORY AUDITORS AND TO FIX THEIR REMUNERATION

To consider, adopt and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution.”

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made there under, M/s.
V E KA M & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, Tirupur, (FRN: 005256S) hereby
reappointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 14" Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in the year 2029 covering the financial years from 2024-25 to 2028-
29, at such remuneration plus GST, out-of-pocket, travelling and living expenses, etc., as
may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Auditors”.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to fix the remuneration payable to M/s. V E K A M & ASSOCIATES, Chartered
Accountants, Tirupur, (FRN: 005256S) for each year, in consultation with the auditors”.

TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. EZHIL GOVINDASAMY, WHO RETIRES BY
ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an "Ordinary Resolution”:
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CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr Ezhil Govindasamy (DIN: 00776230), Director,
who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment, be and is here by re-appointed as a director of the Company.”

(By Order of the Board)
FOR NATRINAI VENTURES.PRIVATE LIMITED
For NATRINAI VENTURES PVT LTD
O %THYANTHAN
Place: Coimbatore - S DIRECTOR
Date : 20.09.2024 D'N- 0 7242001 DIN: 07242001

NOTE:

1.

-

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and such a proxy need not be a member of the
company.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is
proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of
the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or member.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than forty-eight hours before
the commencement of the Meeting.

A body corporate being a member shall be deemed to be personally present at the meeting
if represented in accordance with the provisions of Section 113 of the Companies Act,
2013. The representative so appointed, shall have the right to appoint a proxy.
Shareholders are requested to give their consent for calling the 9 Annual General Meeting
at a Shorter notice pursuant to the provisions of the section 101(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

Location map of AGM venue is attached herewith.
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

DIRECTORS REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 9" Annual Report of the Company, together
with the financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: (Rs. in Lakhs)
. Current Year Previous Year

I Rl CuI TS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 |

Revenue from opefation & Other income 1 10,324.04 6,416.26 |
|_Total Expenditure _' 9639.34 1 6224.09 |

Profit before Tax and Depreciation [ 68470 | 19217 _J

Depreciation ey 1 12.77 B i 10.26 |

Profit before tax 671.93 | 181.91

Less provision for taxation T ' 170.83 B 51.53 [

D_efer_red Tax(Asset) = (2.20) | = _(0.52)— ‘

Profit / (Loss) after Tax ] 503.30 | 131.00 |

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There is no change in nature of business during the year.
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review the company’s turnover is Rs. 10,300.10 Lakhs as against the
previous year turnover Rs. 6,409.90 Lakhs. However, the net profit for the current year after
tax was Rs. 503.30 Lakhs as against the net profit of Rs. 131.00 Lakhs in the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review the Authorized Share Capital of the Company has been increased
from Rs. 40,00,000/- divided into 4,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each to Rs. 1,00,00,000/-
divided into 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each after duly obtaining the approval of the
members at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 02.02.2024.

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 1,00,00,000/- divided
into 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

Further, the Company has increased its Paid-up Share Capital from Rs.34,40,000/- divided into
3,44,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each to Rs.45,00,000/- divided into 4,50,000 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each by way of allotment of 1,06,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium of
Rs.61/- on Rights basis to the existing shareholders of the Company on 01.03.2024,
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

The Paid up Share Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 45,00,000/- divided into
4,50,000 shares of Rs.10/- each.

The Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares, Employee Stock Option, Debentures, Bonds
or non-convertible securities, Warrants, during the year under review.

No shares held in trust for the benefit of the employees where the voting rights are not
exercised directly by the employees

DIVIDEND:

No dividend was declared for the current financial year due to conservation of profits and
continued investment in the business.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
No transfers to reserves were made during the year.
DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

As per MCA Notification dated 27" October 2023, our company falls under the criteria for
obtaining ISIN. Hence, the company has initiated the process of obtaining ISIN and will
facilitate the shareholders for dematerialization of shares whenever required.

CREDIT RATING

The Company has not obtained any credit rating, since the Company has not accepted any
deposit from public.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Since the Company has not declared any dividend, there is no unpaid dividend with the
Company for transfer to the fund.

MATERIAL CHANGES:

The Company has initiated to convert its status from Private Limited Company to Public
Limited Company and a Special Resolution to that effect has been duly passed at an Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on 03-09-2024 and obtained the approval of the members.
Further, the Company has filed necessary Form INC-27 for converting its status from Private
Limited Company to Public Limited Company.

No other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and
the date of this report.
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR:

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 03 September 2024 has appointed Mr. Naveen
as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company w.e.f

03" September 2024 and Mrs. Lakshmi Krishna Kumar, holding ICSI Membership No. A69137 as
the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 03" September, 2024.

There were no other changes in the composition of the Board during the year.
ANNUAL RETURN:

Annual Return in Form No: MGT - 7 is available at the Company’s website
https://www.ngegreenenergy.com

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company held 20 (Twenty) board meetings of the Board
of Directors as per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized below. The
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 were adhered to while considering the time gap between
two meetings.

. i No. of Directors
S. No Date of the meeting } Board Strength Present
1. ] T 14.06.2023 | 3 | 3 1
| i ~01.09.2023 } 3 3
B ~20.09.2023 3 R = o
4, 31.10.2023 3 3
5. 21.11.2023 3 3
6. | 22.11.2023 ) 3 &)
— 7. | 12.12.2023 3 3
8. | 13.12.2023 | 3 3
9. | 16.12.2023 | 3 d
10. | 21.12.2023 | 3 2
1. | 27.12.2023 ) 3 3
12, | 22.01.2024 3 3
13, | 05.02.2024 , 3 3
14| 09.02.2024 | 3 P —
15. | ©10.02.2024 3 : 3
16, | 13.02.2024 3 3
7. | 20.02.2024 i 3 il a5
8. | 21.02.2024 3 3
19. | 24.02.2024 i 3 3
20. 01.03.2024 3 3
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

Number of meetings attended by each Director:

Meetings of Board |
No. of Meetings | Number of | % .

S. No Name of Director which were entitled | meetings |
to attend | attended
S— .

EZHIL GOVINDASAMY 20 20 100

i (DIN: 00776230)
"EAZIL SATHYANTHAN 20 20 100 |

2 (DIN: 07242001) |

EAZILSUDHARMAN | 20 |20 100
3 (DIN: 07281907)

During the Financial Year, 1 (One) Annual General Meeting and 1 (One) Extra Ordinary General
Meeting was held in the Company as per below details:

‘ S. Date of Meeting Type of Meeting | Number of |
No. | Members Present

‘ 1. 30" September, 2023 Annual General Meeting | 4 :
2, 02™ February, 2024 Extra Ordinary General | 4

|_ B Meeting _ulin |
COMMITTEES

The company has not constituted any committee during the year under review,
LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year and hence the said provision is not applicable.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arms’
length basis and in the ordinary course of business and therefore the disclosure requirement
under section 134(3)(h) of Companies Act,2013 is not applicable.

Also, there were no materially significant related party transactions during the year under
review made by the company with the promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or
other designated persons which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

at large. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. However, the disclosure of
transactions with the related party for the year as per Accounting Standard-18-Related Party
Disclosures is given in Note No.27 to financial statement as on 31° March, 2024.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5)of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors
would like to state that:

a) in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March 2024, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
the profit and loss of the Company for the year under review;

¢) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31° March
2024, on a going concern basis;

e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and

f)  The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Secretarial audit is not applicable to the company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information pertaining to the Consumption of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as prescribed under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, has been furnished in Ainexure
A to the Report.

REGD OFFICE: NO 115 FNO 11 APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYALROOF
APARTMENTS REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, NA, COIMBATORE, Tamil Nadu, India, 641018.
PH.NO: 90470 16589, Mail ID: finance@ngegreenenergy.com,

Website: https://ngegreenenergy.com//




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company taking business decisions which entail calculated risks and managing those
within sensible tolerances is fundamental to delivering long term value to our security holders
and meeting our commitments to employees, tenants, customers, contractors, business
partners and members of the communities in which we do business. The Company believes risk
management must be integrated into the day-to-day management and operation of our
business. It should guide our decision making and form an integral part of our culture. The
Company maintains a comprehensive set of policies and procedures which form an integral
part of our risk management framework.

DEPOSITS:

During the year the company has not accepted /renewed any fixed deposit from public.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss,
unauthorized use, or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized,
recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable
provisions and Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and
reporting financial statements. The Company ensures proper and adequate systems and
procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

M/s. Jai Vinoth and Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020874S) resigned on 29.07.2024 as
Statutory Auditors of the company and resulting casual vacancy has been filled by the
appointment of M/s. V E K A M and Associates (FRN: 005256S) by the Board of Directors at the
meeting held on 23.08.2024 and subsequently the appointment was approved by the members
of the company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 31.08.2024, whose tenure
comes to an end at an ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The directors recommended the appointment of M/s. V E K A M and Associates (FRN: 0052565)
as Statutory Auditors of the company for a period of five years from the conclusion of o9t
Annual General meeting till the conclusion of 14" Annual General meeting covering the
financial years from 2024-25 to 2028-29.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory.

Regarding remark in the Auditor’s Report, the directors wish to state:
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605

SI.NO. I Auditor’s Remark Director’s reply

14 Based on our examination, the | This was happened due to inadvertence.
company has used an accounting | The directors wish to state that this
software for maintenance of its | audit trial accounting software feature |
books of account, however, the | will be enabled from the year 2024-25
' feature of recording audit trail | onwards
| (edit log) facility has not been |
enabled. Consequently, we are
unable to comment on audit
trail feature of the said
software. '

DETAILS IN RESPECT OT FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT,

There has been no frauds reported by the auditors pursuant to Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS,
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE.

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.

COST RECORDS:

The Company is maintaining the cost accounts and records as prescribed under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The company has complied with the secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI).

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace and the Company
has adopted Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 to
ensure that prevention of sexual harassment of women employees at workplace. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

....................................... - e
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The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during
the year 2023-24:

No. of complaints received: Nil
No. of complaints disposed of: Nil

APPLICATION UNDER IBC:

No application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (31 of 2016) during the year against the Company.

DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE

TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM

THE BANK OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION:

During the financial year, no such setttement and the valuation done while taking loan from
the Banks or Financial Institutions.

GENERAL:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following
jtems as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review/ the relevant
provisions are not applicable to the company:

1.

2.

Receipt of remuneration or commission by MD /WTD from its subsidiaries.

Disclosure of cost audit requirement as specified by central government under section
148(1) of Companies Act, 2013.

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is not applicable and hence the company has not devised any policy under
section 178(3) of Companies Act, 2013.

The provisions of Section 149 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors and
declaration given by independent directors under section 149(6).

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities reflect its philosophy of enhancing value
to the society and the environment around us. As the company does not fulfil the criteria
as given in the act, this policy is not applicable to the company.

Constitution of Audit Committee pursuant to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable to the Company and hence recommendations of Audit Committee does not
arise.

Disclosure in respect of voting rights not exercised directly by the employees in respect
of shares to which the scheme relates.

There was no case of voluntary revision of financial statements or board’s report and
hence disclosure is not applicable to the company.
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9. Disclosure of establishment of vigil mechanism is nat applicable as the company does not
fall under the mentioned criteria.

10. Annual evaluation of performance of board, committees and individual directors is not
applicable, disclosure about receipt of any commission by MD/WTD from a company and
also receiving commission/remuneration from its holding or subsidiary company and ratio
of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other
details, corporate governance disclosure requirements are not applicable to the
company.

11, There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial institution.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board takes this opportunity to place on record appreciation to Customers, Shareholders,
Bankers and Government authorities for their continued support and co-operation during the
year under review. The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation to the
employees at all levels for their continued co-operation and commitment.

(By Order of the Board)
NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED -

For NATRINAI VENTURES PVTLTD ~ For NATRINAI VENTURES PVT LTD

-+

DIRECTOR
EZHIL GOVlNDASAMPIRECTOR ; EAZIL SATHYANTHAN- -

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 00776230 DIN: 07242001

E NAVEEN LAKSHMI KRISHNA KUMAR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. A69137

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 20.09.2024
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ANNEXURE - A
. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

[Section 134 (3) (m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of 'No steps are taken for conservation

energy of energy
|

ii) The Steps taken by the Company for utilizing | No steps are taken for utilizing the '
alternate sources of energy alternate sources of energy

iii) The Capital investment on energy conservation | No capital investment is made on
equipment energy conservation equipment

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) the efforts made towards technology | No efforts are made towards technology |
QT 1 aBdbrptions v IAVISTAZ v & i caseblofabionin /8 |
(i) the benefits derived like product | No benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product | improvement.
.| development or import substitution; : -
HO[\JB‘Fm?)_ in case of imported ’techm The Company has not imported any
(imported during the last three vyears | technology.

reckoned from the beginning of the financial

| year)-

(a) the details of technology imported; Nil
(b) the year of import; NA
(¢) whether the technology been fully NA
absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where | NA

absorption has not taken place, and the |

reasons thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research | The Company has not incurred any
and Development. expenditure on Research and Development.
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-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual
inflows during the year.
NIL

The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in
terms of actual outflows. Rs. 12.82 Lakhs

(By Order of the Board)
.. FOR NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMTED

For NATRINAI VENTURES N
SVILD For NATRINAI LTD
PeSDIRECTOR
EZHIL GOVINDASAMY EAZIL SATHYANTHRECTOR
DIRECTOR . DIRECTOR

DIN: 00776230 DIN: 07242001

Foemy®

E NAVEEN LAKSHMI KRISHNA KUMAR
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. A69137

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 20.09.2024
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VEKA M AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

H.O : 9/1, B.K.R Nagar, Sathy Road
Gandhipuram, Coimbatore - 641 012

Ph: 0422 - 252 7210, 252 7220, 252 3856
e-mail : panneer.mp@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Natrinai Ventures Private Limited
(CIN: U40100TZ2015PTC021605)

Report on the audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s Natrinai Ventures Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its Profit and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The company's management and board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
management discussion and analysis, board’s report including Annexures to Board’s report but does
not include the Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to re| h‘.;\.s.f@ We have nothing
to report in this regard. ) &




Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, — financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ;

. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our Opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requlred
to draw attentlon in our audltor s report to the related dlsclosures in the ﬁnanc : :




the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evalvate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order ,2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(g)(vii) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

€)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31St March,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are di ed as on
31*March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sectio
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With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of

such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”, Our report expresses an
unmeodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s

internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which have an impact on its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or its
joint operation companies incorporated in India to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

* directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company or its joint operation companies incorporated in India or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

v.  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company or its joint operation from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or
its joint operation companies incorporated in India shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the above representations contain any material misstatement.

vi. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend duri




vii. Based on our examination, which included test checks and information given to
us, the company has used accounting sofiware for maintenance of its books of
account, which did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Hence
we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of the said software.

. For VE KAM AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Membership No: 5
UDIN: 24512127BKB
Place: Coimbatore
Date: 20/09/2024




Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,

On the basis of information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
examination of books of accounts and records during the course of our audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief we report that,

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

W)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use asset.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physical verified by the managerhent
during the year in a phased manner. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification. In our opinion the periodicity of the verification is reasonable,
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets.

(c) Based on the examination of the records, we report that the title deeds of immovable
properties (other than those properties taken on lease), are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(2) The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our
opinion, the coverage, procedure and frequency of verification is reasonable. No
discrepancies of 10% or more were noticed in the aggregate for each class of inventory
during the year.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not made any investments, granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans or provided guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Hence the requirement to report on clause 3(iii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

The company has not made investments, provided guarantee or security. Hence the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits under section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Hen uirement to report on




(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to the
order of the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section148(1) of
the Companies Act 2013 in respect of the products and services dealt with by the company
and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been
maintained.

(@) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods & service tax, duty of
customs, cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable. However, there
are slight delays in remittance of TDS during the year. According to the information
and explanation given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
such statutory dues as at March 31, 2024 which have remained outstanding for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods &
service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Hence the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(@) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) the Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any other lender.

(c) The company has applied the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the

funds raised on short term basis has not been used for long term purposes.

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and hence,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable

(0 The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable

(a) The company did not raise money by way of way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placg

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.




(xi)

(xif)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(2) No material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by us or the
previous auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) The company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where- applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
staternents as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The requirement for appointment of internal auditor specified by the central government of
India under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014 are not applicable to the Company for the year under audit.

The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with directors. Hence, clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

(@) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not
applicable to the company. Accordingly the requirement to report under clause 3(xvi)(a)
of the order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Hosuing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration from the the Reserve Bank
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) There is no core investment company as a part of group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of Statutory Auditors on 29" July, 2024. Based on the
communication with the previous auditors; the resignation was due to non-completion of the
peer review process on their part and there was no issue, objection or concern raised by them.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing a date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the y




(xx)

(xxi)

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

There is no unspent amounts under sub-section (5) or (6) of section 135 of the Companies act.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements of the Company.

Membership No: 512127
UDIN: 24512127BKBLHW 8903

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 20/09/2024




Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of NATRINAI
VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

ropriate to provide a basis
ference to Standalone

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and a
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial co
Financial Statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. - -

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For VE K A M AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 24512127BKBLHW8903

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 20/09/2024




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605
NO. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2024
' (In % Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note As at Year end As at Year end
No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Shareholder’' Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 45.00 34.40
(b) Reserve and surplus 2 751.05 183.09
796.05 217.49
2 |Non Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 3 684.78 169.17
{b) Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 4 6.85 9.05
(c) Other Long-Term liabilities 5 215.00 115.00
906.63 293.22
3 |Current Liabilities
(a} Short Term Borrowings 6 291.14 104.79
{b) Trade Payables 7
(i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro and small
enterprises 646.01 674.55
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 1,954.48 30.97
(¢) Other current liabilities 8 3,192.01 849.52
(d} Short Term Provisions 9 83.86 22.01
6,167.50 1,681.85
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7.870.18 2,192.56
Note As at Year end As at Year end
PARTICOLARS No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
B |ASSETS
1 [Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Asstes
(i} Property, Plant and Equipment 10 174.95 158.90
(if) Intangible Assets 0.06 0.06
(b) Non - Current Investments 11 393 3.93
(c) Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 147.38 2.96
326.32 165.86
2 |Current Assets
(a) Inventories 13 2,465.97 95.31
(b} Trade Receivables 14 2,098.76 1,180.15
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 37.45 535.36
(d) Bank Balances (other than Cash and Cash equivalents) 16 909.41 -
(e} Short term Loans and advances 17 1,642.28 195.87
(f) Other Current Assets 18 390.00 20.00
7,543.87 2,026.70
TOTAL - ASSETS 7,.870.18 2,192.56
See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements (Note No.27)
Significant Accounting Policies 28
The Notes from 1 to 28 are an integral part of these financial statements. e
As per our Report of even date. For NATRINAS ENTRIRES FVEHcHDard of directors e o]
For VEK A M and Associates NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVAToLINEERINAI VENTURES PVT LTD
Chartered Accountants CIN NO:U4 2015PTC021605 N
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605

NO. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE,
COIMBATORE-641018
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2024

(In X Lakhs)
PARTICULARS e For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A.INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations (Net) 19 10,300.10 6,409.90
(b} Other Income 20 23.94 6.35
Total Income 10,324.04 6,416.26
B. EXPENDITURE
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed and Land Sold 21 7,530.53 4,660.16
(b) Changes in Inventories of Work-in-progress 22 -1,331.82 -95.31
(c) Employee Benefit Expenses 23 117.53 52.31
(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 10 12.77 10.26
{e) Finance Cost 24 20.95 3.71
(f) Other Expenses 25 3,302.14 1,603.23
Total Expenses 9,652.00 6,234.00
tP:;ﬁt before extra-ordinary, exceptional items and 671.93 181.91
Extra-ordinary and Exceptional items = s
Profit before tax 671.93 181.91
Tax Expenses
- Current Tax 170.83 51.53
- Deferred Tax -2.20 -0.52
Total of Tax Expenses 168.63 51.00
Profit After tax 503.30 131.00
Earning per share (of Rs.10/- each) 26
Basic EPS (in Rs) 142.65 38.05
Diluted EPS(in Rs) 142.65 38.05
Significant Accounting Policies 28
The Notes from 1 to 28 are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
For VE KA M and Associates NATRINAI VENTURES PRIYVATE LIMITED | (=
Chartered Accounta For NATRINAS VBN 174 lﬂg(l;%m URES PVT LTD
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605
NO. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

_ (In X Lakhs)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
PARTICULARS 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before Tax & Exceptional Items 67193 181.91
Adjustment for :
Depreciation 12.77 10.26
Net loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipement 0.03
Interest & Financial Charges 10.87 2.22
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 695.61 194.39
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in Operating assets:
{Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2,370.66) (95.31)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (918.60) (1,179.98)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances (1,446.40) (192.16)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (370.00) -
Adjustments for increase/ {decrease) in operating liabilities
Increase/(Decrease]} in Trade Payable 1,894.96 463.51
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liablities 2,342.49 800.28
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Liablities 100.00 115.00
Net Cash Generated from/ (used in) operations (72.60) 105.71
Less: Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) 108.98 36.15
Net Cash generated from / (used in) operating Activities (A) (181.58) 69.56
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets / Capital Expenditure (29.07) (42.05)
Sale of fixed assets 0.22 -
Margin money depaosits (Placed) / Withdrawn (net) (909.41)
(Increase) /Decrease in Loans & Advances - Non - Current (147.38) -
Investments - (3.93)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,085.65] (45.98)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increasein Share Capital 75.26 -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings (including current maturit] 515.61 132.68
Increase in Short Term Borrowings 186.35 104.79
(Increase) /Decrease in Loans & Advances - Non - Current 2.96 50.00
Interest & Financial Charges (10.87) (2.22)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) 769.32 285.25
Opening Balance of cash & cash Equivalents 535.36 226.53
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 37.45 535.36
Cash flow during the year (497.91) 308.83
Total (A+B+C) (497.91) 308.83
Note: Cash flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard- 3 "Cash Flow

EZHI VINDASAMY EAZIL SATHYANTHAN

S. HARISHANKAR
Partner

l Dl N- 00776@ i DIN : 07242001
Membership No: 512127 vy

-
Firm Reg No: 0052565 NAVEEN | %

UDIN: 24512127BKBLHW8903 Chief Financia
Place : Coimbatore

As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of directors

For VE KA M and Associates NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants LEPTC021605 as % e
For NATRINAI L, NATHIN YRES PYT LTD

Qliectar DIRECTOR  Director DIRECTOR

Date : 20.09.2024 i




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605
NO. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

(In X Lakhs)
. : As at March 31st As at March 31st

Note - 1: Share Capital 2024 2023
Authorised Capital

10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.
(As at 31st March 2023, 4,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each) 100.00 40.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paidup Share Capital

4,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each Fully paid up.
[As at 31st March 2023, 3,44,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each) 45.00 34.40

Terms/ Rights to Equity Shares

a) 10,00,000 (Previous Year 4,50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights. The holder of each equity share is entitled to one vote per

share.
b} The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.

c) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the company after settling
the dues of creditors as per priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reconcilation of Number of Shares

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Equity Shares
Opening Balance 3,44,000 3,44,000
Changes During the Year
i) Fresh Issue 1,06,000 -
ii) Bonus Issue - -
Closing Balances 4,50,000 3,44,000
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Details of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of No. of No. of Shares
the aggregate Shares in the Company Shares Percentage i Percentage
G.EZHIL 1,11,192 25% 85,000 25%
E.SATHYANTHAN 1,16,424 26% 89,000 26%
E.SIVABAGYAM 1,04,651 23% 80,000 23%
E.SUDHARMAN 1,17,733 26% 90,000 26%
Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the Year
As at March 31, 2024 As atMarch 31, 2023
Promoter Name No. of Shares| % of Total LT, 0lF EOULILEBEL T
i b Shares % of Total Shares the year
Shares
G.EZHIL 1,11,192 25% 85,000 25% -
E.SATHYANTHAN 1,16,424 26% 89,000 26% =
E.SIVABAGYAM 1,04,651 23% 80,000 23% -
E.SUDHARMAN 1,17,733 26% 90,000 26% -
Note - 2 : STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital ] Other ] Total Other Equity
Securities| Redemption | General Retained Comprehensive
Particulars Premium | Reserve Reserve Earnings Income
Balance as on 01/04/2022 36.60 - - 15.59 - 52.19
Profit for the year - - - 130.90 - 130.90
Proposed Dividend - - - = - -
Balance as on 31/03/2023 36.60 B - 146.49 - 183.09
Profit for the year - 503.30 - 567.96
Proposed Dividend - - - -
Balance as on 31/03/2024 - 649.79 - 751.05




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605
NO. 115/ F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

=
= As at March 31st As at March 31st |
Note - 3: LONG TERM BORROWINGS 2024 2023
(i) Secured Loan
(a) From Banks Nil Nil
{b) From Others
- Term Loan from SIDBI 760.50 15.00
Less: Current Maturity -88.11 -4.00
672.39 11.00
- Vehicle loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime 5.53 8.69
Less: Current Maturity -3.43 -3.16
2.11 5.53
674.50 16.53
(iif) Unsecured Loan
From Directors 10.28 152.63
684.78 169.17
A) SIDBI TERM LOAN:
NATURE OF SECURITY:
SIDBI Term Loan 1

(i) Primary Security:
a) First charge by way of Hypothecation of whole of the Current Assets of the company, both present and future and including but not
limiting to all stocks of Raw Material, Work-in-process, semi-finishes goods, packing material, stores, etc.

b) First charge by way of Hypothecation of all the present and future book debts and other actionable claims arising out of genuine trade
transactions.
c) First charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future, in favour of SIDBI on all the movable assets of the company, including the
movable plant, machinery, machiery spares, tools and accessories, office equipement, computers, furniture, fixtures, etc. and all other assets
acquired / to be acquired by the company under the project or scheme.

(it) Collateral Security
a) Extension of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of SIDBI of all the immovable properties owned by Shri. G. Ezhil vacant
land at SF. No. 148/6, Orattukuppai Village, Kinathukadavu Taluk, Coimbatore, admeasuring 2 acres together with all the buildings and
structures thereon.
b) Extension of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of SIDBI of all the immovable properties owned by the company,
situated at No. 4/131A4, school road, Teethipalayam, Perur, Coimbatore-641010, admeasuring 25 cents together with all the buildings and
structures thereon.
c) Extension of First charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future, in favour of SIDBI on all the movable assets of the company,
including the movable plant, machinery, machiery spares, tools and accessories, office equipement, computers, furniture, fixtures, etc. and
all other assets acquired / to be acquired by the company under the earlier assistance of SIDBL

SIDBI Term Loan 2

(i) Primary Security:
a) First charge by way of mortgage of free hold rights owned by the company on the immovable property located at Theni District,
Periakulam, Poomalai Kundu Village Patta No. 4993- S/F No. 750/1, 750/5 (2.07 Acres), S/F . No 738/1B, 738/3, 738/4, 738/6 (4.41 Acres),
S/F.No. 738/2 (1.03 Acres), S/F. No 739/5 (2.96 Acres) totalling to 10.47 acres, together with all structures and buildings thereon.

b) First charge by way of hypothecation of P&M and miscellaneous Fixed Assets save and except stock and book debts acquired/ proposed
to be acquired under the project.

(ii) Collateral Security
a) Extention of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of SIDBI of all immovable properties, owned by the company situated at
4/1314, School road, Theethipalayam, Perur, Coimbatore -641010 (25 Cents) with building thereon.

b) Extention of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of the SIDBI of all immovable properties owned by Govindasamy Ezhil
situated at SF. No. 148/6, Orattukuppai village, Kinathukadavu taluk, Coimbatore admeasuring 2 acres together with all Buildings and
structures thereon.

c) Fisrt charge by way of mortgage of free hold rights owned by Govindasamy Ezhil, located at Patta No. 6, SF. No 148/6, Orattukuppai
village, Kinathukadavu taluk, Coimbatore admeasuring 1.41 acre including regular pathway, together with all structures and buildings there
on.

d) Extension of First charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future, in favour of SIDBI, on all the movable assets of the company,
including movable plant, machinery, machinery spares, tools & accessories, office equipements, computers, furniture, fixtures, etc and all
other assets acquired by the company.

e) Extention of first charge by way of hypothecation of w,
but not limiting to all stocks of raw materials, work-i

currert assets of the company, both present and future and including
nished goods, finished goods, packing materials, stores, etc.




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605
NG. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

f) Extention of first charge by way of hypothecation of all the present and future book debts and other actionable claims arising out of
genuine trade transactions.

SIDBI Term Loan 3

(i) Primary Security:
a) First charge by way of mortgage of free hold rights owned by the company on the immovable property located at Theni District,
Periakulam, Poomalai Kundu Village - S/F No. 750/1, 750/5 (2.07 Acres), S/F . No 738/1B, 738/3, 738/4, 738/6 (4.41 Acres), S/F . No.
738/2 (1.03 Acres), S/F. No: 739/5 (2.96 Acres) totalling to 10.47 Acres together with all structures and buildings thereon.

b) First charge by way of hypothecation of P&M and miscellaneous Fixed Assets save and except stock and book debts acquired/ proposed
to be acquired under the project.

(ii) Collateral Security
a) Extention of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of SIDBI of all immovable properties, owned by the company situated at
4/131A4, School road, Theethipalayam, Perur, Coimbatore -641010 (25 Cents) with building thereon.
b) Extention of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of the SIDBI of all immavable properties owned by Govindasamy Ezhil
situated at SF, No. 148/6, Orattukuppai village, Kinathukadavu taluk, Coimbatore admeasuring 2 acres together with all Buildings and
structures thereon.
c) Fisrt charge by way of mortgage of free hold rights owned by Govindasamy Ezhil, located at Patta No. 6, SF. No 148/6, Orattukuppai
village, Kinathukadavu taluk, Coimbatore admeasuring 1.41 acre including regular pathway, together with all structures and buildings there
on.
d) Extension of First charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future, in favour of SIDB], on all the movable assets of the company,
including movable plant, machinery, machinery spares, tools & accessories, office equipements, computers, furniture, fixtures, etc and all
other assets acquired by the company
e} Extention of first charge by way of hypothecation of whole of the current assets of the company, both present and future and including
but not limiting to all stocks of raw materials, work-in-progress, semi-finished goods, finished goods, packing materials, stores, etc.
f} Extention of first charge by way of hypothecation of all the present and future book debts and other actionable claims arising out of
genuine trade transactions.

(iii) Guarantee:
Irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of E. Sathyanthan , Govindhasamy Ezhil, Sudharman, Sivabagyam, in favour of SIDBI for the due

(iv) TERMS OF REPAYMENT:
SIDBI -Repayable in monthly installments after a moratorium of 6 months from the date of first disbursement.
Loan No. Of Installments Installment Amount
SIDBI Term Loan 1 30 50,000
SIDBI Term Loan 2 78 9,62,000
SIDBI Term Loan 3 114 2,11,000
(v)RATE OF INTEREST
SIDBI Term Loan 1 MCLR +0.5%  810%
SIDBI Term Loan 2 Repo + 2.1% 8.60%
SIDBI Term Loan 3 MCLR + 0.59% 8.70%

(vi) Details of default as on Balance sheet date is Rs. Nil ( Previous year Rs. Nil )
B} Kotak Mahindra Prime - Car Loan

(i} Terms of Repayment:
36 monthly installments from the succeeding month of first disbursement.

(ii) Rate of Interest: 8.26%
(iii) Details of default as on Balance sheet date is Rs. Nil ( Previous year Rs. Nil }

e AN
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NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

NO. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018

As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 4: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITEIS (NET) 2024 2023
Deferred Tax Liability (Due to Timing Difference in Depreciation of Fixed Assets)
Balance at the beginning of year 9.05 9.57
LESS: Current Year Reversal -2.20 -0.52
6.85 9.05
_ As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 5: OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 2024 2023
Advance Service Charges 215.00 115.00
215.00 115.00
As at March 31st As atMarch 31st
Note - 6: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 2024 2023
Loan Repayable on Demand
(A) Working Capital
From Banks 199.60 97.63
(B) Current maturity for Long Term Borrwoings 91.54 7.16
291.14 104.79

SIDBI (IDBI BANK- SIDBI ) - WORKING CAPITAL ARRANGEMENT SCHEME:
(i) Primary security

a) First charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future, in favour of SIDBI on all the movable assets of the company, including
the movable plant, machinery, machiery spares, tools and accessories, office equipement, computers, furniture, fixtures, etc. and all other
assets acquired / to be acquired by the company under the project or scheme.
b).First charge by way of Hypothecation of whole of the Current Assets of the company, both present and future and including but not
limiting to all stocks of Raw Material, Work-in-process, semi-finishes goods, packing material, stores, etc.
c).First charge by way of Hypothecation of all the present and future book debts and other actionable claims arising out of genuine trade
transactions.

(ii) Collateral Security

a) Extension of First charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future, in favour of SIDBI on all the movable assets of the
company, including the movable plant, machinery, machiery spares, tools and accessories, office equipement, computers, furniture,
fixtures, etc. and all other assets acquired / to be acquired by the company under the earlier assistance of SIDBL
b) Extension of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of SIDBI! of all the immovable properties owned by Shri. G. Ezhil
vacant land at SF. No. 148/6, Orattukuppai Village, Kinathukadavu Taluk, Coimbatore, admeasuring 2 acres together with all the buildings
c) Extension of first charge by way of equitable mortgage in favour of SIDBI of all the immovable properties owned by the company,
situated at No. 4/131A4, school road, Teethipalayam, Perur, Coimbatore-641010, admeasuring 25 cents together with all the buildings and

(iii) Guarantee:
Joint and several guarantee of E. Sathyanthan , Govindhasamy Ezhil, Sudharman, Sivabagyam.

(iv) Terms of Repayment
Repayable on Demand subject to Annual Review.

(V)RATE OF INTEREST

1DBI - SIDBI CC [MCLR+0.79%  8.30%]

Rl
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 7: TRADE PAYABLES 2024 2023
(A) Total outstanding dues of MSME 646.01 674.55
(B)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 1,954.48 30.97
2,600.49 705.53

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule (31-03-2024)

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Rarueia Les;:'::n T 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3Years

MSME 646.01 - - -

Others 1,954.48 - o -

Disputed Dues- MSME - z = =

Disputed dues- Others - - : -
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule (31-03-2023)

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

L Coa Les;s{:::n 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3Years
MSME 674.44 0.12
Others 3097 - -
Disputed Dues- MSME - - - -
Disputed dues- Others - - - -
(i) The ageing for Trade payables outstandings was done on the basis of date of transactions
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 8: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 2024 2023
Advance received from customers 2,808.16 534.40
Security deposit received 5.00 5.00
Advance Service Charges 330.00 115.00
Statutory Dues Payable 36.25 184.72
Employee Benefits Payable
9.75 352
Other Payable 2.86 6.89
3,192.01 849.52
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 9: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 2024 2023
Income tax provision 170.50 51.30
Less: TDS & TCS Receivable -66.64 -29.29
Advance Tax -20.00 -
83.86 22.01
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 11: INVESTMENTS 2024 2023
Gold 3.93 3.93
3.93 3.93
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 12: LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 2024 2023
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
MAT Credit Entitlement - 2.96
Capital Advance 147.38 -
147.38 2.96




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U40100TZ2015PTC021605
NO. 115 / F.NO. 11, APPUSAMY LAYOUT, ROYAL ROOF APPARTMENTS, REDFIELDS, RACE COURSE, COIMBATORE-641018

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 13: INVENTORIES 2024 2023
Land 103.25 -
Structures & Consumables 1,427.13 95.31
Stock-in-transit 935.59 B
(At Cost or Market rates whichever is less)
2,465.97 95.31
Inventories lying at project site are considered as Work-in-progress
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 14: TRADE RECEIVABLES 2024 2023
Trade Receivables 2,098.76 1,180.15
2,098.76 1,180.15

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule (31-03-2024)

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Undisputed - considered doubtful
Disputed - considered Good
Disputed - considered doubtful

2,087.41

Particulars Lessthan 6 | 6 months - More than
1-2 Years 2-3 Years
Months 1 Year 3 years
Undisputed - considered Good 11.35 -

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule (31-03-2023)

Ouistanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Lessthan 6 | 6 months - 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than
Months 1 Year 3 years
Undisputed - considered Good 1,180.15 - -
Undisputed - considered doubtful - - - - -
Disputed - considered Good - - - - -
Disputed - considered doubtful - - - - -
(i) The ageing for Trade Receivables outstandings was done on the basis of date of transactions
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 15: CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 2024 2023
a. Cash-in-hand 7.32 1.41
b.Balances with Banks
In Current accounts 30.13 533.95
37.45 535.36
Note - 16: BANK BALANCES (OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS) skl ;‘;;Zh SEGE || G ;";;;h e
Deposits held as Margin Money 909.41 -
{Margin money is pledged/ lien against Letter of Credit for Imports.)
909.41 -
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 17: SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 2024 2023
Advance to employees 835 0.85
Advance to Suppliers 516.15 113.03
Advance for land Purchase 886.65 28.00
Security deposit 1.50 1.50
Balance with Government Authorities 229.63 52.49
1,642.28 195.87




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 18. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 2024 2023
Solar Project Deposit 390.00 20.00
390.00 20.00
i As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 19: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2024 2023
{a) Sale of land 281.32 -
{b) Contract revenue 10,018.78 6,409.90
Revenue from operations 10,300.10 6,409.90
As at March 31st As at March 31st
Note - 20: OTHER INCOME 2024 2023
Rental Income 6.21 6.00
Foreign Exchange Gain 10.66 -
Interest on IT Refund - 0.22
Interest Received 5.88 -
Rebate & Discount 1.19 .14
23.94 6.35
Note - 21: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED AND LAND SOLD e R e
2024 2023
Purchase of Goods and Land 7,420.32 4,660.16
Import of Goods 1,149.04 -
Less: Stock in Transit -935.59 s
Less: Closing Stock of Land -103.25 -
7,530.53 4,660.16
Note - 22: CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF WORK-IN-PROGESS AsTarilancES S tig A aniiarcn 31se
2024 2023
Opening stock
Work in Progress 95.31 -
Total 95.31 -
Closing stock
Work in Progress 142713 95.31
Total 1,427.13 95.31
(Increase) / Decrease in stock -1,331.82 -95.31
As at March 31st As at March 31st
|Note - 23: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 2024 2023
Salary and Bonus 75.36 31.78
Directors Remuneration 20.40 -
Wages 14.99 17.46
Welfare Expenses 6.78 3.07
117.53 52.31
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NO‘I‘B I’ORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR BND!D MARCH 31.2024 o

Note - 24: FINANCE COST As at March 31st As at March 31st
2024 2023
Interest 10.87 222
Bank Charges 10.08 149
20.95 3.71
Note - 25: OTHER EXPENSES o e | s
(a) EPC Expenses:
Solar EPC Expenses 3,124.55 1,511.66
Freight Charges 14.56 333
Power and Fuel 16.67 2113
Insurance 9.54 3.67
3,165.32 1,539.79
(b) Administration & Selling Expenses
Payment to Auditors
- For Statutory Audit 4.00 042
-For Other Services 0.68 0.21
Advertisement 3.67 0.65
Business Promotion Expense 6.98 3.05
Commission Paid 30.54 5.75
Donation 0.25 -
Exchange Rate Fluctuation - 032
Fuel Expenses 12.54 6.98
Insurance 017 481
Licence, Tax & Fees 4.57 0.39
Printing & Stationary 131 0.54
Professional Charges 9.89 1119
Rent 292 1.57
Repais & maintenance 298 6.79
Security Charges 1543 3.68
Travel Expense 33.14 9.37
Other Expenses 7.75 7.73
136.82 63.43
Total 3,302.14 1,603.23
AsatMarch 31st | AsatMarch 31st
Note - 26: EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 2024 2023
i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and loss attributable to Equity shareholders 503.30 130.90
ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS 3.53 344
iii) Basic Earnings per Share (In Rs) 142.65 38.05
iv) Diluted Earnings per share (In Rs) 142.65 38.05
v) Face Value per equity share (In Rs) 10.00 10.00

As per our Report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of directors
For VE KA M and Associates

NATRINAI VENTURF.S PRIVATE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants * » ey
-W VT LTD
s d el
EZHIL GOVIND ASAMY L SATHYAN N -
S. HARISHANKAR Director : Director
Partner DIN: 007763hECToR  DIN: 07242001 . DIRECTOR

Membership No: 51212

/ |
o i ooz g L,,.,.__D'N- 07242

Place : Coimbatore =~
Date : 20.09.2024

Chief Financial Offig¢ 357 Secretary
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Note -27: NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:

271 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Description of Relationship Name of related Parties Relationship
(A) Key Managerial Personnel Mr.Ezhil Govindasamy Director
Mr.Ezhil Sathyanthan Director
Mr.Ezhil Sudharman Director
(B) Enterprises owned by Key Managerial Personnel Siruvani Foods
(C) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Sivabagyam
Mrs, Sreenithy
Transactions during the year (In ¥ Lakhs)
Name of the Related party Nature of For the Year For the Year
Transaction Ended Ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Mr.Ezhil Sudharman Loan repaid 4.10 -
Mr.Ezhil Sudharman Loan taken 2.75 -
Mr.Ezhil Sathyanthan Loan repaid 5 31.85
Mr.Ezhil Govindasamy Loan repaid 141.00 20.00
Mr.Ezhil Govindasamy Loan taken - 168.00
Director's 14.40 -
Mr.Ezhil Sudharman Remuneration
Director's 6.00 -
Mr.Ezhil Sathyanthan Remuneration
Mrs. Sreenithy Salary 3.00 -
Mrs. Sivabagyam Commission 6.50 -
M/s Siruvani Foods Purchase 93.24 34.71
Balances Outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date (In X Lakhs)
Name of the Related party Outstanding as | Outstanding as
on 31.03.2024 | on31.03.2023
Loans taken
10.26 151.26
Mr.Ezhil Govindasamy
0.02 0.02
Mr.Ezhil Sathyanthan
- 1.35
Mr.Ezhil Sudharman
Trade Payable / (Advance)
Siruvani Foods -2.52 2.28
27.2|CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)
{In X Lakhs)
Particulars Asat31 March | Asat31March
2024 2023
(i) Contingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the company not Acknowledged as debt Nil Nil
B. Guarantees Nil Nil
C. Other money for which the company contingently liable Nil Nil
(ii) Commitments
A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
Tangible asset 1,262.60 Nil
Intangible asset Nil Nil
B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid . Nil Nil
C. Other commitments Nil Nil




27.3|Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro,Small,Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(In X Lakhs)
Particulars Asat31March | Asat31 March
2024 2023
i. Principal amount remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of
the accounting year 646.01 674.55
ii. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the of Nil Nil
the accounting year
iii. The amount of interest paid along with the amount of payment Nil Nil
made to the supplier beyond the appointed date
iv. The amount of interest due and payable for the year. Nil Nil
v. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil
the accounting year
vi. The amount of further interest due and payable even in the Nil Nil

succeeding year, until such date when the interest due the above are

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the company. The company has not provided interest on the payables

more than 45 days as per MSME Act

(In X Lakhs)
. Asat31March | Asat31March
27.4|Particulars 2024 2023
(a).Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
Raw material Nil Nil
Components and Spare parts 1,149.04 Nil
Capital goods Nil Nil
(b). Expenditure in foreign currency:
Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees, interest,
and other matters 8.10 7.29
Travelling expenses
4.72 -
(c).Amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on Nil Nil
account of dividends:
(d) Total value of
(i) All imported raw materials, spare parts and components consumed 1149.04 -
% of the same to total consumption 14.19 0.00
(iiJAll Indigeneous raw materials, spare parts and components 6948.90 4649.47
% of the same to total consumption 85.81 100.00
(e). Earnings in foreign exchange:
Nil Nil

Export of goods & Services

27.5

27.6

The figures for the previous year have been reclassified / regrouped / amended, wherever necessary.

The company has taken building for office under cancellable operating leases. Each renewal is optional and




27.7

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

Additonal Regulatory Information

Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company

The company does not hold any Immovable properties whose Title deeds are not in the name of the company.
The title deeds of all the immovable properties, disclosed in the financial statements included in property,
plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued any Property Plant and Equipment during the year or the immediately

The company has not made any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that
(a) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Ageing of Capital Work In Progress (CWIP)

As at 31-03-2024

Particulars Less than More than 3 Total
1-2years| 2-3Years
1 year years

Projects in progress
a) Plant & Machinery - s = . =
b) Building = - 5 s =

Projects temporarily suspended - - - z .

As at 31-03-2023

Particulars Less than More than 3 Total
1-2years| 2-3Years
1 year years

Projects in progress
a} Plant & Machinery - - = = -
b) Building = : " - ’

Projects temporarily suspended = - = - -

Intangible assets under development:

The company does not have any intangible assets under development during the year or the immediately
preceding year

Details of Benami Property held
The company does not hold any Benami properties during the year or the immediately preceding year

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks on the basis of security of current assets.

The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other
lender during the year or the immediately preceding year.

The company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, during the year or the immediately preceding year

The company does not have any Registration of charges or satisfactions that are yet to be filed with Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory period except vehicle loan of Rs. 5.83 lakhs ( PY 8.69 lakhs ).

Compliance with number of layers of companies are not applicable

|l LY

)




(xii)

tax/Capital Employed)

Ratios
As at As at
Ratios March March | % of Change Remarks
31st2024| 31st

Current Ratio (Current o )
Assets/Current Liabilities) 122 N -
Debt Equity Ratio (Debt Capital o =
/Shareholder's Equity) s B {esiti]
Debt Service coverage ratio Due t(_) increascla in repaym-eflt_s due to
(EBITDA/Debt Service 3757 55.16 (31.90%) increase in term liabilities
(Int+Principal))
Return on Equity Ratio (Profit i
for the year /Average 99.32%| 86.09% 15.36%
Shareholder’s Equity)
Inventory Turnover Ratio Increase in operations and higher
(COGS/Average Inventory) 7.31 130.09 {94.38%) volume of projects at year end
Trade Receivables turnover Increase in operations and higher
ratio (Net Sales/Average trade 6.28 10.86 (42.16%) volume of projects at year end
receivables)
N A s AR e G0 Increase in operations and higher
(T ota.ll Purchases + Expenses on 710 13.09 45.75% volume of projects at year end
Credit)/Average Trade
Pavahlog)

Increase in operations and higher
Net capital turnover ratio 0 volume of projects at year end
(Sales/Working capital (CA-CL}) ek =20 (Goceal
N f o (N Due to increase in scale of operations
P:;{?:/OS;;':)UO (Net 4.89% 2.04% 139.09% and economies of scale
Return on Capital employed .
(Earnings before interest and 38.38%( 36.79% 4.34%

Return on investment (Net

Profit/Investment)

NA




(xiii) |Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements as approved by the Competent Authority in terms of
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year or the immediately preceding year.

(xiv) |Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: ) i |
or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary
shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

during the year or the immediately preceding year.

(B) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

during the year or the immediately preceding year.

(xv) |Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR)
The Company is not covered under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013

(xvi) | Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
During the year the company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency

{xvii) |Undisclosed income
During the year there are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
sutrrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessment under Income Tax Act 1961.

As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of directors
For VEK A M and Associates NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
Chartered Accountants CIN NO:U TZ2015PTC021605 .

For NATRINAI PVT LTD, @W"mﬁ -
. EZHIL GOVINDASAMY EAZIL SATHYANTHAN .

RECTOR Director
_ DIN:07242001 DIRECTOR

S. HARISHANKAR
Partner
Membership No: 51212

Firm Reg No: 0052565 1.t DIN- 07242001

UDIN: 24512127BKBLHW8903 NAVEEN LAKSHMI KRISHNA RUMAR™
Place : Coimbatore Chief Financial Office \ pany Secretary
Date : 20.09.2024 2bership No. A69137




NATRINAI VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

28.1. CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Natrinai Ventures Private Limited (‘the company’) was incorporated on 22° July 2015 as a private
limited company domiciled in India. The company is engaged in the business of Supply and
Installation, EPC, operation and maintenance of Solar Power Generating Systems. The company
is further in the process of setting up of solar power generating system for sale of electricity.

28.2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention,
and evaluated on a going concern basis, with revenues and expenses accounted on the accrual
basis of accounting to comply in all material respects with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’), to comply with the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) USE OF ESTIMATES:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles (‘GAAP’) in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances as of the date of financial statements which in management's opinion are
prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the
accompanying financial statements. Difference between the actual results and estimates are
recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialized.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the company’s functional
and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements and notes
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise
stated.

(iiif) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises sale of materials, service income, rent and interest. Revenue is recognised to
the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and that the revenue
can be reliably measured.

a. Sales revenue is recognised on transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods to the buyer and stated net of taxes. Revenue is recognised
only when it can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection. ‘




b. Income from engineering, procurement and construction services is recognised on
completion of performance obligation under the contract with the customers. Income
in respect of operations and maintenance service contracts are recognised over the
tenure of the respective contract with customers. -

c. Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable.

d. Rentincome is recognised on time proportion basis when it is due as per the respective
contract.

(iv) PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS

Property Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at the Cost of acquisition including incidental
expenses relating to acquisition and installation, irrecoverable taxes and net of Input tax credits,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all expenses incurred to
bring the asset to its working condition and current location for its intended use. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost. The cost of internally
generated assets comprise direct cost attributed to the generation of the asset.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The cost of common
infrastructure including substations developed by the company has been treated as revenue
expenditure as the usage rights for the estimated life of the asset has been contracted to the solar
project customers and no future economic benefits accrue to the company.

(v) DEPRECIATION
a. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided under straight line method based on the useful life of
the asset in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 as follows,

Building 30 years
Computer 3 — 6 years
Electricals 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 — 10 years
Plant and Equipment 8 — 20 years

b. In respect of addition and sales of assets during the year, depreciation is provided on prorata
basis for the period from/upto which the asset is ready for use/disposed off.

(vi) INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated




(vii) IMPATRMENT OF ASSETS

a. Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment of the carrying amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If any indication exists, an
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

b. Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication
that the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exists or have decreased.

(viii) INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the first
in first out method. Cost comprises all costs of purchase cost of conversion which are being
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost in case of work
in progress is determined on the basis of the actual expenditure attributable to the said work till
the end of reporting period. The cost of common infrastructure facilities including substations
developed by the company for solar projects are treated as inventory and valued based on the
estimated utilizable capacity at the end of reporting period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. In the absence
of cost, waste/scrap is valued at estimated net realizable value.

(ix) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

Transactions of foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary Assets/ liabilities outstanding at the close of the financial year are translated
at the exchange rate prevailing on that date and the net gain or loss is recognized in the profit and
loss account.

(x) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis. All employee benefits payable
wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. These benefits include salary, wages, bonus, performance incentives and compensated
absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. No provision has been made for long term
employee benefits as in the opinion of management, there is no accrued liability considering the
employment tenure of the employees currently on roll.

(xi) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

a) Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized
when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimation can
be made of the amount required to settle the obligation.

b) Contingent liabilities arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc. are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation as result of a past
event where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount can bg reasonably estimated. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation i ich the likelihond of antflow of resonrees




is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized
but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the Financial Statements.

c) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-29 on “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006.

(xii) BORROWING COSTS:

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets,
are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of profit and loss.

(xiii) INVESTMENTS

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the
date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as
long-term investments.

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in value is made only when in
the opinion of the management there is a diminution other than temporary in the carrying value of
such investments determined separately for each investment. Current investments are valued at
lower of cost and market value.

On disposal of an investment, if any, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

(xiv) ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME:

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of
timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

a. Income tax
Current tax provision is made based on the tax liability computed after considering tax allowances

and exemptions, in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liability or asset is recognized
for timing differences between the profits/losses offered for income taxes and profits/ losses as
per the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be
realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses,
deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to
reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually as the case may be) to be realized.

A‘SSO




(xv) EARNINGS PER SHARE:

The company reports earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - Earning per
Share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006. Earnings per share are
computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Since the company has not issued any convertible preference shares
or debentures the diluted EPS is same as that of basic EPS.

(xvi) CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effect of transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are
segregated.

(xvii) CASH AND CASH EQIVALENTS:

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(xviii) SEGMENT REPORTING:

The company is operating in single geographical segment i.e. Tamil Nadu. The company has been
engaged in the business of supply, installation, operation and maintenance of Solar Power
Generating Systems which is a single business segment. The company has proposed to set up
solar power generating system for sale of electricity in the ensuing financial year. Since there is
no revenue or profit or loss generated, it is not jdeatifiable as a reporting segment. Hence segment
reporting is not given.
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